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DESCRI8E THE PRESENl AND ORIGINAlllF KNOWNI PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Lexingeon Green Historic District consists of thirteen properties SUIrOUnQ~ng th~ Lex-
ington Battle Green. The Green it5elf is a National Historic Landmark in recognition of
the encounter between the patriot Minute Men and British troops which tOQk place there on
April 19, 177S. Of the contiguous properties surrounding the Green, thiee of the existing
5tructures were witnesses of that battle. Most of the remain~ng structures were built
within the next halt century after the close of the Revolution. Thus, the area is vis-
ually and architecturally coherent, preserving a pleasant human scale in the buildings
which face the shaded park space of the Green.

The commercial district of Lexington Center begins ~ediately to the east of the Green
area on Massachusetts Avenue. Design control exercised by the local historic district
commission and beautification efforts in the mid-1960's by local architects have combined
to keep the business center of the town compqtible with the Green.

The architectu~al highlight of the district is the First Parish Church (#6). Des~gned in
1847 by Isaac Melvin, Cambridge architect and later partner of Ammi B. Young, this hand-
some Classical Revival building stands at·the north~st corner of the Green. The ~ain
block' is two stories high with a ridge .zoof...·From··the ·front~f -thi:s clapboard 'cht:a;ch'p~o-
ject5 a ~ectangu1ar pa~ilion with a balustrade above the cornice. The side walls of the
receS5ed entrance portico terminate in Ionic pilasters, the capitals of which =atch the
t~o Ionic columns defining the space in front of the door. The Qoer is framed by Ionic
pilasters supporting a heavy flat entablature. The four-stage steeple is made up of a
iectangular ClOCK tower surmounted by an octagonal lantern, circular drum and octagonal
spue. The front facade' and the projecting pavilion are covered with flush boarding.
L4ter additions include a low vestry to the rear, added'in 1871 and enlarged in 1908. The
porte-cochere over the driveway on the east sid~was also added·in 1908_

In contrast to the First Parish Church is the'Hancock COngregational Church (18), d@siqned
by Walter J. Paine.of boston and built by Dodge Brothers of Somerville in 1892-1893. The
original buiLding is fieldstone and is two stories with a ridge roof running parallel to
the street. on the east end is a square, buttressed tower with a pyramidal roof. An
archway is cut through the tower, and to the right is the recessed entrance porch with a
double arched doorway. From the roof of the western end of the original.block emergeG
an extremely wide dormer clad in g~een slate in ~hich is recessed a four-par~ diamond paned
window strip. Below this, proj@cting forward from the facade is a five-sided bay sunnounted
by a conical roof. Originally of fieldstone, the bay is now covered with stucco scored to
look like stone blocks in ~egular ashlar course. Th~s treatment is continued in the ~9S0's
addition to the west end of the bui1d~g.

On the opposite side of the Green ~s the ~sonic Building (#3). Built in 1922 to house the
Lexington Academy, the original building had a tall ornamental. cupola emerging from the
peaimented end of the rOof. Although this. feature no lonqer s~ives, the basic two-
story b~ock and ell remain. The roof has had its present IIIOdifiedhip appearance and den-
tiled cornice since at least the 1890's and possibly eazlier. The tripartite division of
t~e main ~acade, ~rked now by foundation-to-cornice Tuscan pilasters at the corners and
on each side of the door, has been a permanent feature of the buildin~'5 appearance,

A11 three o~ the remaining pre-Revolutionary bui1din9s facing the Gr~en have been alter~d
by restoratl.on. The JOf\athan Harrinqton Hous@ (#4)Brown. Old views vas remoCleled in 1910 by owner ~roy

show a high hip roof, center entrance, center Chimney dwelling which'
continued
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The Lexington Green Historic District is most ~idely recoqnized as the scene of the Rev-
olutionary War encounter of April 19, 1775. It i9 also siqnificant BS ~e focal point
of tha town's religious and ci~ic history after it was set aside from cambridge as the
separate parish of cambridge Farms in 1692. The area is associated with so~ of Lex-
inqton's most prominent families, notall1y the Munroes, Harri.ngtons, BucJanans and Meriams.

One of the oldest buildings in the district 1s the Marratt and Nathan Munroe House (#9)
which was built around' 1730 by John Munroe, one of the ,earliest settlers in the green
area i' - The house became·-the--home-of Johll"T son-1'larrett;;n 1737,--and al:- the' time 0'£ the'
Revolution the house. was occupied by Marrett's son Nathan.

The Harrington family was associated with at least three houses around the Green (#4, #5
and,12). The family was established in Le~inqton with the arrival from Watertown of
two cousins. John and Robert Harrinqton, who came to the town around 1713. The earliest.
Harrington House on the Green was occupied in 1775 by Jonathon Harrington (grandson of the
first John) who ~as mortally wounded in tAe fateful battle of April 19. In the 1820's

. tQe-'house was owned by shoemaker-philanthropist' John AUCjUstus who endeavored t:o teaeb.
hi.s._trade..to yOWl9~offenders of the law and·."inculcate··inthe1lr more 'socia'lly responsible
ha))it$, thus ast.aDlishi-ng one of the earliest systems of .prob~t10n. Late%' in the nine-
teenth century the hoUse was the center of the Chittenden and Burr 'clock makers' works~

Another of the earliest stxuctures around the Green is the Bucldnan 'l'avent (*1) built aroun
the time the town was incorporated in 1713. It was here that 'the Minute Men awaited the
"rival of the British the niqht of April. 18-19; in the mid-nineteenth cent\U'y the Tavern
became the residence of the Mariam family.

Also closely associat~d with the history of the town is the old Buryin9 Ground behind the
First P~ish Church. The earliest stone dates from 1690 and later stones reveal the
development of the art of slate-carving. Here ~he patriot dead were buried after the
Battle and rested here until 1837 when, with 9reat ceremony, the bodies were removed to
a new grave near the 1799 Monument on the Green. Here also is the grave of Captain Par-
ker who led the Minute Men, ~ot only on April 19, 1775, but also at Dunker Hill.

Fron 1690 when the Parish of Cambridge Farms was established until 1846, the first Parish
of Lexinqton had built its meetin9 houses on the Green; In 1846, after extensive refur-
bishing. by architect Isaac Melvin, the third meetin9 house on that site burned to 'the
grQund. The pr8sent First Parish Church <*6), trom designs of Melvin, was its reylacement

continued
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of track right. of way to Hanc:ock St%eet, across Hancock Stl:'eet along property line of #3
Bedford Street, across Bedford street to northern property line of 11 garrington Road,
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of #5 Harringtoq. Road, follow property line of ft7 HarrinC]ton Road to boundary of the Old
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17 Harrington ~ad, SQutheast 1.1Qn~]; ne of #7 Barr; ~tgn load to ~tj """d6 .
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#7;
is five hays ~ide and two deep. .Brown's alteration re~ved the old chimney and replaced
it _ith two smaller ones - one to the left of center and one on the eastern slope of
the roof. Although the fenestration remains unchanged, the doorway wa5 altered from
one with a simple entablature supported by pilasters to the present modillioned and den-
tiled pediment over a door with crossetted surround flanked by Tuscan pilasters. Brown
also altered the Marrett and Nathan Munroe House (#9) in 1915, resorting to similar de-
vices.

Buckman Tavern (#1) (HABS and NHL) was also restored in the 20th centu~. Restoration
tn this case was more scholarly than with the Harriagton and Munroe houses, and a genuine
attempt to replicate the appearance of the tave~ as depicted'~n Doolittle prints_of the
Battle of Lexington ~as made by local architect William Roger Greeley in ,the 1920~s.

Of the ~wo other~lBth'century houses-facing'the-Green; the-Nathaniel-Harrinqton Ho~se
(.12) is the most interesting. Reputed ~o be the first all-brick house in Lexington,
it has been called the "honeymoonn cottage of the Harringtons. The main block of brick
is five bays wiae with a center entrance and a chimney at each end. The l~tels of the
door and all windows are simple granite slabs. The roof was altered in 1874' to a man-
sard, and restor,d to its ~riginal hi~_~hape in_1926 by William Ro~r Greeley. It is
probable that the door was ·modified at the same t~e, the fine-dentil course of the co~-
nice and the_reeding of the, frieze being more probably COlonial Reviva1. than original.
Later.:..additions,ine.lude-,the-"1830·'side... porch' and expansions -of the. kitchen area .:tothe
rear -in 1920.

The district-is located ~ithin the local districe known a$ the Battle Green Historic
District, established in 1956 by special act of the Massachusetts legislature.

#8:
'l"he first occupant of the Acad,emy Building <.3) ~as the Lexington Academy, Which failed
after ten years'. In 1837 Horace Mann became the first head of the state r s new BoaX'd of
Education, ana one of his reforms involved the establishment of Normal Schools for the
training of puhlic school teachers. In 1839 the first Normal School in the country be9Bn
in the Academy Building in Lexington under the direction of Cyrus Pierce_ Pierce was
succeeded in 1842 by Reverend Samuel J. May, abolitionist, transcendentalist, and uncle
gf Loutsa May Alcott. During May's direction of the school, it continued to gro~ until
it was forced to move to large~ quarters in Framingham in 1B44. Samuel May also served
a brief term as minister to the tirst Parish Church in 1843. The Lexington Academy
Building was occupied by the conqr~gation of the Hancock United Church of Christ from

·1867, when the church was organized, until 1893, when the present Hancock Congxegational
Church (#B) was constxucted. The Academy Building was also USQd as a Memorial Hall, with
shops with living quarters above, an early movie theatre, and since 1917 as the home of
the Simon w. Robinson Lodge Of Free Masons.
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10:

Massachusetts Avenue, across Massachusetts Avenue to northwest property line of
#1932 Massachusetts Avenue, follow property line'of *1932 Massachusetts Avenue
southwest, then southeast to intersection with property line of #1912 Massachusetts
Avenue, continue across back line of #1912 Massachusetts Avenue to intersection
with eouthea~t ~operty line of #1906 Massachusetts Avenue, follow line across
southeast boundary of 1900 and 1894 Massachusetts Avenue to intersection with
southwest property line of 1888 Massachusetts Avenue, £ollow southwest property
line to north side of Clar~ Street, cross Massachusetts Avenue from north siae
of Clark Street to North Side of Meriam Street.
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Justification for inclusion of the Visitors'Center in the Lexington GreenHistoric
District:

The Visitors' Center (TownInformation Center) (*13) was built in 1960. It
faces the Greenand is an integral part of the grouping of buildings in the
district. Althougha reproduotion of an earlier style, the Visitors' Center
i:=I eensd ti vely designed and blends in ~ell with the rest of the area where
visually it is not considered an intrusion.

The Visitors' center is a white clapboard structure With a gambrel roof and
is six bays wide and two bays deep. There are three front dormers and a
brick chimneyslightly to the right of the center dormer. The windowshave
black louvered shutters and have eiqht over twelve lights. The dormers hAve
six over six lights. The entrance is situated slightly to the left of center
and has double paneled doors. -The southeast boundaryof the LexingtonGreen Historic District is fozmedby
the Boston and MaineRailroad and Mariam street. .Theland on which the
Visitors' Center and the BUckman Tavern stand is ownedby the tpwnand so it
is l.ogical to include the entire parcel in the district.
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Lexington Creen Proposed Nat1on.l Register District - Map Key

1. Buckman Tavern - 1713,(KABS) - ! Bedford St. (National Hi5torlc Landmark)
2. lted Cross Building - Early 19= Century, put: together from older"components

3. Firs,t Normal School. Now Muollie Building - 1822 - 3 Bedford St.

4. Jonathon Harrington. House, rAid 1Stll Centuxy - 1 Harringtoll Rd. (RABS)
5. George Harrington House. 1799 - 5 Harrington Rd.
6. First Parish Church, 1847 - 7 Harrington Rd.
7. 1932 MaSSAchusetts Ave. , c.1850
8. Hancock Congregational Church, 1892 - 1912 Massachusetts Avenue.
9. Matrett and Nathan Munroe House!c1730 -1906 Massachusetts Ave.

10. 1900 Mass. Ave. - c. 1850

11. 1894 Massachusetts Ave. - c. 1850

12. Nathaniel Harrington House - e. 1790 - 1888 Massachusetts AVe.

13., Town Information Center. 1960 -
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DESC"RIBEVIEW,DIRECTION, ETC. i

General view of Green from northwest; right foreground shows
Revolutionary War monument; left background shows Buckman
Tavern, a Lso an NHL.
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DESCRIBE V, E Vi. 0 IRECTI0 N. e:TC. '-
View across Green from east to west; boulder (foreground) and
monument (backgx:ound) showing line of Minute Men on April 19,
1775.
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General view of G~een' from south (intersecti~n of Massachusetts
Avenue .and Bedford Street),; right fo'reg round - Minute Man
Statue


